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Rep. Porter: We will open the hearing on HB 1466

Julie Ellingson: | represent the North Dakota Stockmen's Association. We are in support of
HB 1466 which would initiate negations in Federal Legislation to return certain Army Corp.
Engineer Iands to their former owners. During this and the last session and the interim in
between many very potent examples of problems relating to weed control and
unreasonable grazing requirements negatively impacting land owner on these parcels,
have been brought to light. Our association has always held that the land is best held in
private hands and agrees that the property should be returned to those private land owners
who we believe are the best owners of the land source. You will also hear about the
purposed amendments to clarify the language that in the event that the former land owners
have been deceased that those parcels would then bhe returned to their heirs. (see
attachment 1)

Rep. Porter: Are there any questions for Julie Ellingson?

Rep. Brandenburg: | represent district 28. HB 1466 is a bill dealing with the Corp. land
along Lake Oahe and Lake Sakakawea. In the last session there was a bill dealing with the
weed issue and the problems with grazing and problems along the Corp. land. There are a
lot of land owners along the reservoirs that were mistreated. (see attachment 2)This bill
would allow the land commissioner to be the negotiator between the Federal Government
and the land owners. The Federal Government will want one agency to deal with this. The
Land Department would be that agency that could deal with that with the Federal
Government. (see attachment 2)

Rep. Porter: Is there any questions for Rep. Brandenburg?

Rep. Kasper: | would like to get back my grandfathers original homestead. Would | be able
to get that land back?

Rep. Brandenburg: That is what the bill is being set up for. First we have to negotiate with
the Federal Government to get this land to come back. Then you are going to have an
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agency to work the land owners that were adjacent when the land was taken away from
them. We may have to deal with heirs.

Rep. Kasper: in the end of line 9 it says “with the goal of returning these excess lands to
the former private land owners or adjacent land owners”. A goal is not a requirement. They
would not be required to with the word “goal of” in this bill. How do you answer that?

Rep. Brandenburg: | have an amendment that | should have made copies of. It does read
that the United States Army Corp. of Engineers, with the goal of introducing Federal
Legislation to return the excess lands around Lake Sakakawea above the elevation of 1854
sea level and excess land s around Lake Oahe above 1617 sea level to the board of the
University of School Lands with the goal of returning excess lands to the former private
land owner, their immediate family, or adjacent land owners to the extend feasible.

Rep. Kasper. You still have the word “goal” in there instead of “requirement,” you are
talking about heirs, some of that land could have changed hands two or three times so you
have new owners. Are the new owners out?

Rep. Brandenburg: This is going to be an ongeing battle that we have to keep working on. |
agree with you it should be a requirement.

Rep. Porter: In South Dakota did the land go back to the private owner?

Rep. Brandenburg: In South Dakota the land went back to the State Land Department and
the State Land Department is in charge of it.

Rep. Porter: The Senate Majority Leader that the deal.

Rep. Nelson: How high above the maximum pool depth are those elevations that you are
naming?

Rep. Brandenburg: The base flood elevation for Lake Sakakawea is 1837, which is where
the Corp. tries to get it by March 1. It is currently at 1840.7. The Corp predicates it will get
to 1838 by March 1. The base flood level for Lake Oahe is 1607. It is currently at 1605, the
Corp. predicts it to be at 1606 by March 1.

Rep. Porter: Are there further questions for Rep. Brandenburg?

Rep. Kasper: Are you able to find out what the highest water elevation has ever been in
Lake Sakakawea?

Rep. Brandenburg: | can find out from the Water Commission.
Rep. Anderson: If the land owners get the land back will there be restrictions on that?

Rep. Brandenburg: Yes there would have to be some land restrictions in there because you
have to deal with those issues. You can't farm right up to the edges to the water.
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Rep. Porter: Did you see the fiscal note on this particular biil?

Rep. Brandenburg: The State Land Departiment is looking for more FTE’s which could
cause a fiscal note.

Rep. Porter: There will be more concern in the next biennium if the land would come back
because there are provisions to this bill that they would be required to give back to the
private owners, family or the adjacent land owners that all of it would have to be surveyed
and they are estimating it at almost two million dollars to survey the property.

Rep. Brandenburg: Who is going to pay for that would have to be determined | do know
that the State Land Department is receiving a lot of money from the leases that they have
been sending out for oil leases and other leases for rentals. The most exciting part is
getting this economic development back for recreation and many other commerce things.
The will make money off the land. The land owner will make money off the land. | bet if a
farmer got the land back he would pay for the surveying fee.

Rep. Porter: Would you have a problem amending it?

Rep. Brandenburg: That should be talked about. The land owners should have a meeting
and talk about that.

Rep. Porter: Are there any other questions for Rep. Brandenburg?

Herb Grenz: | live in Emmons County. | don't have a handout. | dealt directly with the Corp.
of Engineers and we live on the Oahe reservoir. When dealing with the Corp. way back
then everything went quite well, but the problem with the Corp. is they are a bunch of liars.
They get around that policy by not lying, but changing policies. The State of North Dakota
has learned that well and | was proud of the Governor, and the Attorney General and the
testimony about the charges of the water that finally North Dakota said “said enough is
enough.” | have been working on this excess land issue, to the return back the land to the
county. The Corp. will not send the land back to the private land owner it has to be an
entity. Land owners are not an entity. The flowage easement acquired at the Oahe project
gives the Government perpetual right to overflow the land when necessary as a resuit of
construction, maintenance, and operation of the project.

The Government also has the right to enter the easement lands as needed as well as
remove from the easement lands any natural or manmade obstruction or structure which in
the opinion of the Government may be detrimental to the operation and maintenance of the
project. Under flowage easement this land would be under government control, we can't
put any building on it. If this land would go back would be deeded back and it would be on
the county taxes. We would save the Government a lot of money. The Corp. tells you how
to graze the land. The Corp. would still be responsible for any land below 1617.

Rep. Porter: Are there any questions for Mr. Grenz? | have a question in regards to the
elevations, if the reservoir is full this coming spring it will be at 1618 then are the numbers
in the bill correct?
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Herb Grenz: | go what the Corp. of Engineers goes by. | believe in Sakakawea it is 1854,
In Oahe the maximum it can be is1620.

Rep. Porter: Are there any questions for Mr. Grenz?

Rep. Nelson: Is the 120 acres the lease land and then the flowage easement land that you
own. Is that how it all sits on the landscape?

Herb Grenz: No the flowage easement goes down to draws or creeks.

Rep. Nelson: That 120 acres of lease land, does that follow topography too.
Herb Grenz: That does follow topography along the edge of the reservoir.
Rep. Porter: Are there any further questions for Mr. Grenz?

Rep. Schmidt: | am the district 31 representative. The land that | represent goes from South
of Mandan to the South Dakota Border. The iandowners along the reservoir are doing the
same actions to try to get back their land as what we are doing here. My family lost 434
acres to the Oahe Dam. | have documentation of what there means were from 1952 and
later. In 1962 my father wrote a letter and asked why some land was going to be taken by
the Oahe. The response from Senator Young and the Corp. was quote “The substantial
portion of track 454 is expected to be inundated at the normal maximum operating pool, the
remainder is required because of the anticipated effects of the accreditation and erosion,
thus it is necessary to acquire all of the track to meet the land requirements established for
the project and to ensure that reservoirs operations will not affect the lands remaining in
private ownership.” To this day | don't there has not been one acre flooded nor have we
lost anything in regards to erosion.

When set up, the upper limit of that reservoir of ten and a half miles is operatory. A field
survey was never made. They used an 1890 map in which the elevations probably were not
right. There was a survey done to find out about the fish and wildlife service situation. The
letter stated “this office cannot concur with the purposed method for accomplishing the
purposed wildlife management on Oahe the judgment used to reach this decision is
expressed below.” The one | want to point out is “this land operation portion was presented
to the Governors of North Dakota and South Dakota and the people of these states in 3
separate meetings. To date which was December 17, 1965 as a result of the desires
expressed by the general public, at the public hearings expressions of some state wildlife
agency officials no acreage was purchased or otherwise added to the project for wildlife
purposes.”

If that is the case then why do | have maps with Wildlife on it? This is the method by which
this land was obtained. (see attachment 2) | would like to make one amendment to the
amendment and that is at the bottom it says “ to the extend feasible” | don’t have any words
to submit at this time.

Rep. Porter: Could we put a period on line 13 after landowners?

Rep. Schmidt: That would be fine.
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Rep. Kasper: Would everything you said that applies to Oahe also apply to Lake
Sakakawea?

Rep. Schmidt: Yes it would other than the elevations.

Rep. Kasper: | have a problem with the word “goal” on line 11 where is says “with the goal
of returning access lands” Why not the word requirement?

Rep. Schmidt: | would love it.

Rep Kasper: It says” the former private landowners” | own it now, so | qualify or adjacent
landowners. There is somebody we are missing in between that is if the land had been
sold to somebody else who is not adjacent landowner, it is somebody that bought it from
my grandfather. So you are missing someone. | would return it to those people who own it
right now even though they don’t qualify under the definitions you have right now.

Rep. Schmidt: | agree with you sir.

Rep. Neilson: There seems to be 2 basic issues here, one land and the other easements.
Do you know in South Dakota did the Federal Government extinguish their easements?

Rep. Schmidt: | do not know if they did or not.

Rep. Anderson: If your dad sold this land for $51.00 and they are willing to give it back. Are
they going to request a payment of $51.00 plus interest that has accrued all of those years?

Rep. Schmidt: Since 1966 the public and the Corp. of Engineers has had 434 acres that
they have used for $51.00. | think that is a good deal. That could be a issue.

Rep. Porter: Are there further questions for Rep. Schmidt? | there further testimony for the
support of HB 14667

Kenny Graner: | am a framer-rancher and live in Morton County. | have a grandson that
would be affected by this land going back to the landowner. | am in support of this bill with
the amendments. | also would like to point out that what is going to happen when this land
is returned to the landowner is that part of ownership in this land is going to go back to that
fandowner and this land will thrive again someday.

Rep. Porter: Are there any questions for Mr. Graner? Is there further testimony in support of
HB 14667

Kevin Schmidt: | live in Morton County. The Corp. took 286 acres from by dad in 1964. This
is land we had set up for irrigating 2 years before they took it. We still owned 30 acres
down there. The land that we still own is about 1625 ft. The flood irrigated that field as flat
as this floor is. They took right down the middle of the field. They own one side of the
fence, and we own the other side of the fence. We do rent it from the Game and Fish. As
far as survey costs, there are corner posts and markers all over that land from when they
took it. There is no reason to survey it.
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Rep. Porter: What was the elevation of the 30 acres?
Rep. Schmidt: 1625 and this has never been flooded.

Rep. Porter: Are there any questions for Mr. Schmidt? |s there further testimony in support
for HB 14667?

Jim Fitzsimmons: | am here to testify in support of HB 1466 and the amendments that have
offered by Rep. Schmidt. My grandparents surrendered 480 acres to the Corp. 85% of the
people who lost land are no longer with us. 50 years later we can talk about the negatives.
Here are some of the positives. What the Corp. did was save millions of dollars in flood
devastation thru out the Midwest. We also know that they took too much land. The way to
resolve it is to return the land.(see attachment3)

Rep. Porter: Are there any questions for Mr. Fitzsimmons? is there further support for HB
14667

Durant Schiermeister: | farm along the Missouri River | have 3 acres of river frontage. This
is the most confusing piece of land in North Dakota because it was taken off of an old map.
These small tracks of land grow nothing but weeds. | spent thousands of dollars trying to
control weeds that are not on my land. If it was my property | would take of it like it should
be. If this was returned to us people we would pay taxes and lessen the burden of the
Federal Government for trying to manage land that they don’t know how.

Rep. Porter: are there any questions for Mr. Schiermeister?

Rep. Nelson: Last time 1 visited with you, you were trying to grow some crops next to Lake
Oahe. How did the reservoir affect you?

Durant Schiemeister: If you are trying to grow a high value crop along Lake Oahe give it up.
When you have acres upon acres of weeds for 3 miles and are trying to irrigate that won’t
work.

Rep. Porter: Are there any further questions for Mr. Schiemeister? Is there further
testimony in support of HB 14667 Is there opposition for HB 14667

Mike McEnroe: | represent the North Dakota Wildlife Society. The chapter is opposed to
HB 1466 because of transferring access Corp. land back to the owners. The Game and
Fish Department indicates that there are about 47,000 management acres along the
Sakakawea and Lake QOahe. These are public lands that are valuable to the sports people.
There are currently 60 boat ramps located along the Missouri River, while none of these
would be affected because the land is all high land and these boat ramps are along the
reservoir access to them, may be given away for up above the way to make access to
those ramps difficult or costly. The North Dakota Game and Fish Department has been
working with the Corp. for seven years trying to increase shoreline access. If access along
those access areas is removed or transferred back to private citizens, the citizens of the
State could lose access to parts of that reservoir. | would aiso like to make a comment
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about a letter | have seen from the McLean County State’s Attorney. There seems to be a
lot of legal issues dealing with the Corp. transferring the land back to the private citizens. A
lot of it has reference in the settlement that was done | believe it was called the J.T.E.C.
Settlement. Most or all of the land that was transferred back in South Dakota went thru the
State Land Department to the Game and Fish Department and or to the Tribes. | don't
know that any went back to private ownership. If they return this land to the private owners
what should be the price of the land that should the 2011 prices, given the short fall of the
Federal budget should it be sold back to the highest bidder?

Rep. Porter: Are there any questions for Mike McEnroe? Is there further testimony in
opposition to HB 14667

Mike Donahue: | represent The North Dakota Wildlife Federation. We support what the
chapter had to say a few minutes ago. (see attachment 4)

Rep. Porter: Are there questions from the committee?

Rep. Nelson: the people can't drive, camp or pickup a rock on the land. How is that
recreation?

Mike Donahue: | am not familiar with all the rules up and down the system, but there are
many locations where you can access the water line and not be in fear of being in trouble
for doing it. | do know that picking up artifacts can get you into a big bunch of troubtle.

Rep. Porter: Are there any other questions for Mr. Donahue? Is there any further opposition
for HB 14667

Mike Brand: | am the director of the Surface Management Division for the North Dakota
State Land Department. | am not here to present any testimony. We prepared the fiscal
note for the Legislative Council my purpose here is to explain any questions you might
have on the fiscal note. Under the appropriations it says one point three million dollars
that's a transposition of the numbers that is really one million eight hundred and thirty two
thousand six hundred and thirty six dollars. That was an error on our part. That State Land
Department and the Board of University School Lands are not a general fund agency. We
are a special fund agency that is why you see a fiscal note that asks for general fund
appropriations. We would not be able to use our lease money from the oil and gas from that
type of thing for this project. It would have to be a general fund appropriation. The one
point million doesn't include the appraisal or the survey costs. If the state would take
procession of the property what would happen to it. | wouldn't have any idea.(see
attachment 5)

Rep. Kasper: Is there is any way you can use money in the trust fund for the costs?
Mike Brand: Not in the Lands and Minerals Trust Fund. That could be appropriated by the

Legislature but not in the School Trust Funds or any other trust funds which are specific for
those entities.
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Rep. Kasper: | am talking about the money the Governor is going to use for the roads in
North Western North Dakota. How is he getting that money out of there?

Mike Brand: That trust fund is a general fund trust fund. It is not a land trust fund.
Rep. Kasper: Then you manage it, but it is a general fund?

Mike Brand: | am not sure if that money comes from lands and minerals or if it is coming
from severance tax but it would come from general fund money.

Rep. Kasper: if the land was broken into sale tracks sale costs. From your testimony are
you implying that this land would be sold as opposed to “given” back to the original
landowners?

Mike Brand: When this fiscal note was written, we under the impression that in reading the
bill that the land would come in possession of the state. We assumed that the land would
be sold. We would not be making that decision

Rep. Kasper: Do you see what your knowledge, any possibility if the Federal Government
did deed the land back to state so that a trust could be set up for the landowners so that we
are not doing a gifting?

Mike Brand: | am not qualified to speak about that.

Rep. Porter: Are there any further questions for Mr. Brand?

Bruce Engelhardt: | am with the State Water Commission. | would like to answer some of
the questions that were asked about elevations. With the snow pact we have this year |
would expect we are looking at 1620 on Oahe this spring.

Rep.Porter: Can you check and see what the maximum has been on both.

Bruce Engelhardt: Yes | can get that information for you.

Rep. Porter: Are there any questions for the Water Commission? At this time we will close
the hearing on HB 1466.
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Rep. Porter: We will open the hearing on HB 1466. Rep. Brandenburg asked that we
would iook at amending the bill, the amendment you have is what has been proposed from
the sponsor. The goal of the bill is to ask for Federal Legislation to transfer the land back to
which is around Lake Sakakawea and Lake Oahe above 1620 is what to the board of the
University of School lands. So that with the goal of returning these lands to the former
private land owners and the adjacent owners to the extend feasible.

Rep. Brandenburg felt that was too much to chew off at one time and that first needs to be
accomplished and the Legislature can deal with the second one after the fact. We are
hoping, that will take out the fiscal effect of the bill and that done the bill can move forward.

Rep. Porter: Are there any questions on the proposed amendment?

Rep. Keiser: Did we request the fiscal note with these amendments?

Rep. Porter: They would not do that until the amendments are placed on the bill.
Rep. Nathe: | make a motion to move the amendment.

Rep.DeKrey: Second.

Rep. Porter: Is there any discussion? All those in favor say I. Motion carries, we have an
amended bill in front of us.

Rep. DeKrey: | make a motion to do pass as amended.
Rep. Nelson: Second
Rep. Hanson: What has South Dakota done with their land that they got back?

Rep. Porter: There was a Federal Grant that came with the land for the operations of the
land from the Federal Government the land went into their Land Department for the Parks
and Recreation. It went to a standing public agency and remained in the public since. It
came with a huge check along with the return of the land.

Is there further discussion on HB 14667
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Rep. Porter: The do pass motion carries.

Yes 13 NO 2 Absent 0 Carrier: Rep. Anderson
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Rep. Porter: We will open HB 1466.

Rep. DeKrey: | move we reconsider our actions by which we passed out HB
1466. '

Rep. Nathe: Second

. Rep. Porter: Is there any discussion? Voice vote taken. Motion carries | am
going to pass around a amendment , in the fiscal note | don’t have it in front of
me there was a $80,000 fiscal note to lobby Congress because of the way the
wording on the front of this reads where it says on line 6 negotiate with
Representatives of the United States Army Corp of Engineer that fiscal note
included 4 trips to Washington D.C. and the other language that was in there
talked about the board of the University of Schools will except the lands on
behalf of the State of North Dakota. | am passing around a hog house
amendment to the bill that quite simply states “if through federal legisiation the
United States Army Corp. of Engineers returns the excess land” and then on
the bottom line it says “the board of University and School Lands may accept
the land on behalf of the State of North Dakota.”

Rep. DeKrey: | move to porter the amendment to HB 1466.
Rep. Damschen: Second

Rep. Porter. Is there any discussion? All those in favor motion Carries We
now have amended HB 1466 in front of us.

. Rep. Kasper: The land would go back to the state and not to the original
owners?
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Rep. Porter: We had amended that portion out on the version that we sent on
the floor. We changed the elevation to 1620 and put a period at the end of
Schoo! Lands. It was felt by the bill sponsor that took the contention away
from all of the other groups and that really their intention is to get this done in
faces anyway. Face 1 would be to go to the Federal Government and ask for
the land back, have a receiving agency and then the legislature can deal with
the process of distributing the land back to the owners.

Rep. DeKrey: | make a motion
Rep. Anderson: Second
Rep. Porter: We have a Do Pass as amended. Roll call motion carries

Yes 12 NO O Absent3 Carrier. Rep. Anderson



FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Ceuncil
02/15/2011

Amendment to: HB 1466
1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to

funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.
2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium

General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds |Genaral Fund| Other Funds

Revenues

Expenditures

Appropriations
1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium
School School School
Counties | ° Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

The bill authorizes the Land Board to accept 100,509 acres of federal land along the Missouri River if Congress
authorizes the transfer to the state. There would be costs of managing the land, but an estimate cannot be determined
without defined purposes and the time-fine of a transfer.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have
fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant fo the analysis.

There are potential costs related to survey and land management including weed control, fencing and lake access; but
the actual costs cannot be determined without knowing when the transfer would occur; whether the Board would
accept the land; and the purpose for which the land would be managed.

3. State fiscat effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A, Revenues: Explain the revenue amounits. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
ftemn, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

The tracts acres along the Missouri River reservoirs are small issolated rough tracts that will have higher
management costs than that of larger parcels.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide delail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates fo a
continuing appropriation.

be appropriated from the general fund or derived from federal funds as a consequence of the transfer. The

.The State Land Department operates with special funds; any expenditures related to transferred land would need to

appropriation is not included in the executive budget.
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. FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/25/2011
REVISION

Bill/Resolution No.: HB 1466

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law,

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium
Genera! Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds {General Fund} Other Funds

Revenues $194,392
Expenditures $80,006 $1,832,636
Appropriations $80,006 $1,382,636

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium
School School School
Counties Citias Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: FProvide a brief surnmary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

The bill authorizes the Land Commissioner to negotiate for the transfer of 100,509 acres of Corps land to the state.
Travel, legal, staff and meeting costs are estimated for the 11-13 biennium. Rent income along with land
management, taxes and transfer costs are included in the 13-15 biennium.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have
fiscal impact. include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Estimate is evaluated in 3 phases: negotiations with the Corps in 11-13 biennium, land transfer to the State in the
13-15 biennium, and the land sales to the former owners after 2015. Potential survey costs could exceed all of the
expenditures outlined in this fiscal note.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Expiain the revenue amounts. Frovide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounls included in the executive budget.

In 2009 the Army Corp of Engineers collected $70,700 for agricultural leases on the Garrison Reservoir and $22,600
for leases on the Oahe Reservoir as it lies in North Dakota. These amounts were increased by 10% to reflect revenue
for the 13-15 biennium.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

Travel, public meetings and legal costs of negotiating the land transfer in the 11-13 biennium, Estimate is 3.5 FTEs
along with operating costs, tax payments and weed control during the 13-15 biennium, while land sales are prepared.
The 100,509 acres along the Missouri River reservoirs are small rough tracts that will have significantly higher
management costs than typical sections of pastureland.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and



appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the execulive budget or relates to a
continuing appropriation.

The expenditures would need to be appropriated from the general fund. The appropriation is not included in the
executive budget.

[Name: Lance Gaebe Agency: State Land Department

Phone Number: 701 328-2800 Date Prepared:  01/21/2011
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Requested by Legislative Council
01/18/2011

BilResolution No.: HB 1466

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to
funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current faw.

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium
General Fund| Other Funds [General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds

Revenues $194,392
Expenditures $60,006 $1,832,634
Appropriations $60,006 $1,382,638

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effact: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political subdivision.

2009-2011 Biennium 2011-2013 Biennium 2013-2015 Biennium
School School School
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts

2A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the
provisions having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

The bill authorizes the Land Commissioner to negotiate for the transfer of 100,509 acres of USACE land to the state.
Travel, legal, and public meeting costs are estimated for the 11-13 biennium. Rent income along with land
management, taxes and transfer costs are included in the 13-15 biennium.

B. Fiscal impact sections: /dentify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have
fiscal impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Estimate is evaluated in 3 phases: negotiations with the Corps in 11-13 biennium, tand transfer to the State in the
13-15 biennium, and the land sales to the former owners after 2015. Potential, survey costs could exceed all of the
expenditures outlined in this fiscal note.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detarl, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget

In 2009 the Army Corp of Engineers collected $70,700 for agricultural leases on the Garrison Reservoir and $22,600
for leases on the Oahe Reservoir as it lies in North Dakota. These amounts were increased by 10% to reflect revenue
for the 13-15 biennium.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounls. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line
item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

Travel, public meetings and legal costs of negotiating the land transfer in the 11-13 biennium. Estimate is 3.5 FTEs
along with operating costs, tax payments and weed control during the 13-15 biennium, while land sales were being
prepared. The 100,509 acres along the Missouri River reservoirs are small rough tracts that will have significantly
higher management costs than typical sections of pastureland.

and fund affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and

. C. Appropriations: Expiain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency
appropriations. Indicate whether the appropriation is also included in the executive budget or relates to 3



. conlinuing appropriafion.

The expenditures would need to be appropriated from the general fund. The appropriation is not included in the
executive budget.

Name:

Lance Gaebe
Phone Number:

701 328-2800

Agency: State Land Department
Date Prepared: 01/21/2011
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11.0671.01003 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for {
Title.02000 House Energy and Natural Resources / 5} (1
Committee 2
February 03, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1466
Page 1, line 7, replace "return” with "transfer"
Page 1, line 8, after "feet" insert "[565.10 meters]"

Page 1, line 9, replace "1.617" with "1,620"
Page 1, line 9, after "feet" insert "[493.78 meters]"

Page 1, line 9, remove "with the goal of"

Page 1, remove line 10

Page 1, line 11, remove "to the extent feasible"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 11.0671.01003



Date: D

Roll Call Vote #: _Léyf_zé: 2

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. /£ (71 p1p03 — © 2099

House House Energy and Natural Resources Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number /) 0k T/ O )0 a3

Action Taken: Do Pass [ ] Do Not Pass [x] Amended [] Adopt Amendment

[ Rerefer to Appropriations [ ] Reconsider

Motion Made By ﬂﬁmﬂ_ Kﬁ,uf Seconded By W Freboon

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Porter L Rep. Hanson v
Vice Chairman Damschen v Rep. Hunskor v
Rep. Brabandt v Rep. Kelsh v
Rep. Clark / Rep. Nelson v
Rep. DeKrey Vv
Rep. Hofstad v
Rep. Kasper v
Rep. Keiser v
Rep. Kreun 4
Rep. Nathe A
Rep. Anderson Ve

J
Total (Yes) /2 No S

Absent

2
Floor Assignment &/ KW'?W—/

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:




2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES

Date: A-i0- 1t

Roll Call Vote #:

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. /4l

House House Energy and Natural Resources

i

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Committee

Action Taken: [ ] Do Pass [] Do NotPass [ ] Amended

[ ] Rerefer to Appropriations

1 Reconsider

[] Adopt Amendment

Motion Made By Q"W /ét 44(4{,21

Seconded By beﬁ ‘77,4,&‘?2@

Representatives Yes

No

Representatives

Yes

No

Chairman Porter

Rep. Hanson

Vice Chairman Damschen

Rep. Hunskor

Rep. Brabandt

Rep. Kelsh

Rep. Clark

Rep. Nelson

Rep. DeKrey

Rep. Hofstad

Rep. Kasper

Rep. Keiser

Rep. Kreun

Rep. Nathe

Rep. Anderson

Total (Yes)

No

Absent

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:

et

el

onslem e
0 gt HE 1406



. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1466

Page 1, replace lines 6 through 11 with:

“If, through federal legistation, the United States army corps of engineers returns excess
lands around .ake Sakakawea above elevation of 1854 feet mcan sea level and excess
lands around Lake Oahe above 1620 mean sea level, the board of university and school
lands may accept the land on behalf of the statc of North Dakota.™




Date: o2- 10- 1/
Roll Cali Vote #: =

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/IRESOLUTION NO. _/ Y& ¢&

House House Energy and Natural Resources Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken: [ ] Do Pass [] Do NotPass [ ] Amended [ Adopt Amendment

[] Rerefer to Appropriations [ ] Reconsider

Motion Made By l?g s, ,ZQ,L vrl-(/:,u}f Seconded By @ﬁmﬁm_
=

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Porter Rep. Hanson
Vice Chairman Damschen Rep. Hunskor
Rep. Brabandt Rep. Kelsh
Rep. Clark Rep. Nelson
Rep. DeKrey
Rep. Hofstad
Rep. Kasper
Rep. Keiser
Rep. Kreun
Rep. Nathe
Rep. Anderson

Total {Yes) No
Absent
Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:

. mW%#@/wé
%ﬁm crps Lo (Cariaes
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11.0671.01004 Adopted by the Energy and Natural Resources t l\{ 3
Title.03000 Committee “

. February 11, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1466
Page 1, line 1, remove "subsection to"
Page 1, line 1, replace "15-02-05" with "to bhapter 15-02"
Page 1, line 2, replace "duties of the commissioner" with "the authority of the board"

Page 1, replace lines 4 through 11 with:

"SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 15-02 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Authority to accept Lake Sakakawea lands.

If. through federal legislation, the United States army corps of engineers retums
excess lands around Lake Sakakawea above elevation of 1,854 feet [565.099 meters)
mean sea level and excess lands around Lake Oahe above 1.620 feet [493.766
meters] mean sea level, the board of university and school lands may accept the land
on_behalf of the state of North Dakota."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 11.0671.01004
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2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. __/bb

House House Energy and Natural Resources Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number (. 0471 0kko4 _ OZne

Action Taken: [} Do Pass ] Do Not Pass i;ﬁ Amended [ | Adopt Amendment

[} Rerefer to Appropriations [7] Reconsider

Motion Made By IZe;ﬁ ,@ céé%/ Seconfc?gx; %W

Representatives
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1)
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No Representatives

Chairman Porter Rep. Hanson

Vice Chairman Damschen

Rep. Brabandt

| Rep. Kelsh

Rep. Clark | Rep. Nelson

Rep. DeKrey
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|
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Rep. Hunskor ||
|

\

Rep. Hofstad

\

Rep. Kasper

Rep. Keiser

Rep. Kreun

Rep. Nathe

]IS IRISNSSD

Rep. Anderson

Total (Yes) / A No O

Absent 3

Floor Assignment o 07/ \Wesse
L)

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:




Com Standing Committee Report Module (D: h_stcomrap_23_031
February 4, 2011 1:52pm Carrier: Anderson
Insert LC: 11.0671.01003 Title: 02000

HB 1466: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Porter, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (13 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1466 was placed
on the Sixth order on the calendar.

. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Page 1, line 7, replace "return” with "transfer”

Page 1, line 8, after "feet" insert "[565.10 meters]"
Page 1, line 9, replace "1,617" with "1,620"

Page 1, line 9, after "feet" insert "[493.78 meters}"
Page 1, line 8, remove "with the goal of"

Page 1, remove line 10

Page 1, line 11, remove "to the extent feasibie”

Renumber accordingly

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_23_031



Com Standing Committee Report Module [D: h_steomrap_.29_010
February 14, 2011 8:35am Carrier: Anderson

Insert LC: 11.0671.01004 Title: 03000

HB 1466: Energy and Natural Resources Committee (Rep. Porter, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1466 was placed
on the Sixth order on the calendar.

. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

Page 1, line 1, remove "subsection {o"

Page 1, line 1, replace "15-02-05" with "to chapter 15-02"

Page 1, line 2, replace "duties of the commissioner” with "the authority of the board"
Page 1, replace lines 4 through 11 with:

"SECTION 1. A new section to chapter 15-02 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:

Authority to accept Lake Sakakawea lands.

if_through federal legislation, the United States army corps of engineers
returns excess lands around Lake Sakakawea above elevation of 1,854 feet [565.099
meters] mean sea level and excess lands around L.ake Oahe ahbove 1,620 feet

[493.766 meters] mean sea level, the board of university and school lands may accept
the land on behalf of the state of North Dakota.”

Renumber accordingly

{1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_29_010
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2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Senate Natural Resources Committee
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol

HB 1466
March 17, 2011
Job #15623

[] Conference Committee

2

Committee Clerk Signature 4/ 11 452 :;’{E / ,/

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-02 of the ND Century
Code, relfating to the authority of the board of university and school lands

Minutes: Testimony Attached

Chairman Lyson opened the hearing on engrossed HB 1466.

Sheyna Strommen, representing the ND Stockmen'’s Association, stood in support of HB
1466. See Attachment #1.

Representative Mike Brandenburg, District 28, introduced the bill. HB 1466 is to deal with
the Corps land and bringing it back to the state. What we are talking about is the land that
is above the waterline. The dams were built for flood control. Some of the lands taken have
been 10-20 feet above the water level. SD has taken back their land. We need a program
to return our land to the State Land Dept and then they can return it to the landowners. Itis
not just about agriculture, it is about water for fracing, it's about all the things alongside oil,
agriculture, cattle, residential and recreation. Those are all things that we gave up.

Chairman Lyson: Why are the 2 reservations not involved in this bill?

Representative Mike Brandenburg: | will let Representative Schmidt speak to that. We
are working together with the reservations.

Senator Triplett: Where will the lands go? What will be the final disposition of the lands?
And will the tribal lands go back to the tribes?

Representative Mike Brandenburg: | agree, this bill still needs some help.

Representative Jim Schmidt, District 31, stood to explain HB 1466. There are two entities
on Standing Rock, the Lake Oahe Landowners that are American natives that own land
themselves. That land was taken. Then you have Standing Rock Sioux tribe. | have been
working to do this very same thing on Standing Rock. We would like to see HB 1466
compliment the efforts of the tribe to recover the taken lands. We want to approach the



Senate Natural Resources Committee i
HB 1466

31711

Page 2

federal government together, which will give us more power. With respect to the individuals
in Morton County that had land taken, some of that land was higher than the dam itself. We
agree that the land goes to the state and as landowners we are working with the state to
get the land back. One of the key items in this though is the state, once it gets this land,
retains the mineral rights. We want to get the mineral rights back with the land rather than
the state retaining them. The opportunity for the money to be gotten back by the state
through those mineral rights exists.

Chairman Lyson: Shouldn’t we have something in the bill that the land that is outside the
reservation or owned by tribal members will come back to the tribe, not back to the state of
ND?

Representative Jim Schmidt: Yes, | would agree to amend that. Those of us in Morton

County that gave up the land that didn’t flood, we find it interesting that the land south of

Bismarck that does flood is being maintained in private ownership and taxpayers’ dollars
are going to protect that while we, on the other hand, had to give up our land and it didn't
flood.

Senator Triplett: Do you have any amendments to propose as far as exempting the tribal
lands from this?

Representative Jim Schmidt. You can work on that. But it should not go into Sioux
County.

Mike Donahue, ND Wildlife Federation, spoke in favor of HB 1466. The original version,
we were opposed to. This version is weak enough to go through and not bother anything.
We did feel that on line 6 of the bill “and Lake Oahe lands” should be inserted after Lake
Sacagawea.

Mark Fox, on behalf of the Mandan Hidatsa & Arikara Nation, presented written testimony
in opposition to HB 1466. See Attachment #2.

Senator Triplett: Have you prepared the amendments you would like to see?
Mark Fox: You can go ahead; we will also work with our tribal lawyer.

Dave Archambault, representing the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe, spoke in opposition to
the bill. This bill is not ready for passage. 56,000 acres were taken from the tribe and about
19,000 were deemed excess by the Corps of Engineers. They have been working at getting
the acres back since 1986. In 2002 some land was returned to South Dakota. An act of
Congress gave it back to the tribes and to the state. The Corps does not do any
improvement and management. We understand they don’t need that excess land. The
Corps has even asked the BIA to manage it for them. The other aspect to consider is the
safety of the cultural heritage resources that exist within the boundaries. They are protected
by federal law. If they are taken out of federal status even if they are in the state lands, they
are no longer protected. There are also different factions within the reservations. The tribe
is working with the different factions, they identified the factions and settled it with them.
They did return some that they deemed excess. 386 acres were given back. The Corps



Senate Natural Resources Committee
HB 1466

3/M17/11

Page 3

negotiated only with the BIA. They went straight rather than around the reservation so there
was a lot more acreage that was taken on the reservations. If there is land that will be
returned there are other obligations such as the 1868 treaty. The lands do need to be
returned; we just want it to be equitable.

Chairman Lyson: If we would change this bill into a study, would you work with us to get a
bill that would work?

Dave Archambault: We would be more than willing to work with you.

Dana Yellow Fat, the Natural Resources Liaison for Chairman Murphy with the Standing
Rock Sioux Tribe, presented written testimony in opposition to HB 1466. See Attachment
#3. It would be good for all of us to work together to get something passed, so if an
amendment is offered, please notify the tribe.

Senator Triplett: If the land comes back to state landowners, you have concern with the
potential of cultural artifacts being on them. It is not just on land that is within the
boundaries of the reservations, is that correct?

Dana Yellow Fat: Yes
Neutral

Lance Gaebe, the Commissioner of the State Land Department, and the secretary to the
Board of University and School Lands: My comments are not on behalf of the board. It is
not a role of the State Land Commissioner or of the Board of University and School Lands
to undertake this legislation. It came about by legislative action so what you see in front of
you is something we are responding to and not something we initiated. There are
unknowns in the bill, only South Dakota has done this. That land came back to South
Dakota with a 1.8 million dollar trust fund to use to manage the land. Half of the tribes
participated with that transfer. Also | would like to mention that Governor Hoeven was
opposed to the transfer directly to the BIA for the benefit of the Three Affiliated Tribes. It
would have gone to the trust and not to the original landowners. Besides, it should come
with money for management. It should also go to the original beneficiary of the land. They
would have just transferred it to the BIA for the benefit of the tribe without consideration for
the private owner or the trustee.

Senator Triplett: Mr Gaebe, could you get us a copy of that March 4, 2008 letter? It was
from Governor Hoeven directed to the Depts. of the Interior and the Army.

Lance Gaebe: Yes, | can do that.

Dana Yellow Fat. On Standing Rock, the majority of the land is owned by the tribe or tribal
members. Denying access to the river, that is not the case with Standing Rock. We are
working with two separate groups. Three Affiliated Tribes and Standing Rock are two
separate entities and have two separate interests.



Senate Natural Resources Committee
HB 1466
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Page 4

Chairman Lyson: We have to come up with something that works for the two tribes and for
us.

Dana Yellow Fat: | agree. In SD it was a trade off and only two of seven tribes were in
agreement with it.

Chairman Lyson closed the hearing on HB 1466.



2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Senate Natural Resources Committee
Fort Lincoln Room, State Capitol

HB 1466
March 24, 2011
Job #15933

[ ] Conference Committee

Committee Clerk Signature 4/ ' )
7 v

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-02 of the ND Century
Code, relating to the authority of the board of university and school lands

Minutes: No Attachments

Chairman Lyson opened the discussion on HB 1466.
Senator Tripiett: Did someone offer some amendments to convert this to a study?

Chairman Lyson: | didn't because from the information | have been getting we could
convert it into a study and by then there will be two new chairmen of the tribes and the
study would be wasted. | cannot see how we could pass this bill without mention of the
reservations because Lake Sacagawea runs right through the Fort Berthold Reservation
and it borders Standing Rock Reservation. Standing Rock representatives said they even
had sacred land above the reservation.

Senator Uglem: Where it refers to the returns of excess land, aren’t we only talking about
lands outside the reservation?

Senator Schneider: We need to make clear that we would accept only the land that was
formerly state land, not land that was reservation land.

Chairman Lyson: The land in Fort Berthold that fiooded was some state land and some
tribal land. If we say only the state land it leaves them out. They were owners of the land
that was taken.

Senator Hogue: What is the status of any Congressional action to do this or to ask the
Corps to do this? This might be premature.

Chairman Lyson: One of the reasons this was brought forward was that South Dakota
won and was awarded their lands.



Senate Natural Resources Committee
HB 14686

3/24/11

Page 2

Senator Schneider: It is my understanding that it was clear that Congress was going to
authorize that these lands be returned to South Dakota first. Concurrently with that South
Dakota made provisions to accept the land. 1 think we are taking step B here first.
Obviously Congress is not going to do this any time soon. | don't think this does anything.

Senator Hogue: | think South Dakota acquired theirs when Senator Daschle was the
Majority Leader of the Senate and had considerably more influence. This bill might be
premature.

Senator Hogue: Do Not Pass motion

Senator Triplett: Second

Senator Schneider: | am torn about this. | know we want to send a signal and we have
done that through resolution that the state wants these lands back.

Roll Call Vote: 6-1-0

Carrier: Senator Hogue



Date: S 24— 7

Roli Call Vote # ‘

l 2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. 140,

Senate Natural Resources Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken: ] Do Pass [i\Do Not Pass ] Amended [] Adopt Amendment

] Rerefer to Appropriations ] Reconsider

Motion Made By ﬂq‘ oa” Seconded By jpf.@b{'
7 4
Senators Yes | No Senators Yes | No

Chairman Lyson e Senator Schneider ./
. Vice-Chair Hogue v’ Senator Triplett v

Senator Burckhard v T

Senator Freborg v

Senator Uglem v

Total  (Yes) b No |

Absent O
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If the vote Is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:



Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: s_stcomrep_53_005
March 24, 2011 11:42am Carrier: Hogue

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1466, as engrossed: Natural Resources Committee (Sen. Lyson, Chairman)
recommends DO NOT PASS (6 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Engrossed HB 1466 was placed on the Fourteenth crder on the calendar.

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_53_005
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‘)‘*O 407 SOUTH SECOND STREET
BISMARCK. NORTH DAKOTA 58504
g\( i Ph: (701) 223-2522
by Fax: (701) 223-2587

e-mail: ndsa @ ndstockmen.org
www.ndstockmen.org

HB 1466

Good afternoon, Chairman Porter, and House Natural Resources Committee
members. For the record, my name is Julie Ellingson and I represent the North

Dakota Stockmen’s Association.

The Stockmen’s Association stands in support of HB 1466, which would initiate
negotiations and federal legislation to return certain Army Corps of Engineer

lands to their former owners.

During this and last session and the interim in between, many very poignant
examples of problems relating to weed control and unreasonable grazing
requirements negatively impacting landowners on these parcels have been

brought to light, and I know you will be hearing more of those stories today.
The Stockmen’s Association has always held that land is best placed in private
hands and agrees that this property should be returned to those private

landowners, who are the best stewards of the resource.

For these reasons, we ask for your favorable consideration of this bill.
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Legislative Assembly PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1466
Of North Dakota

Introduced by
Representatives Brandenburg, Kretschmar, Schmidt

Senators Erbele, Klein, Wanzek

1A BILL_ for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 15-02-05 of the
2 North Dakota Century Code, relating to duties of the commissioner of university

3 and school lands.

4 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

5 SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 15-02-05 of the North Dakota Century

6 Code is created and enacted as follows:

7 Negotiate with representatives of the United States army corps of engineers
8 with the goal of introducing federal iegislation to return excess lands around
9 Lake Sakakaweé above elevation 1,854 feet mean sea level and excess lands

10 around Lake Oahe above 1,617 feet mean sea level to the board of
11 university and school lands with the goal of returning these excess lands to

12 the former private landowners, their immediate family or adjacent
13 landowners to the extent feasible,



712 3% Avenue
P.C Box 1108

Office of Washburp, ND 58377-1108
Mebean County State’s {701) 462-8341

Attotney Fax (7011 462-8212
Irevickson@and.gov

TO: Representative Todd Porter

| =

FROM: [.add Ericksop”

DATE: Jannary2s, 2011

RE: HB1466 and SCR4002

SCR4002 “urges the Congress of the United States to provide a legal process to return to the
riparian landowner land controlled by ihe Army Corps of Engineers which is not necessary for
authorized purposes” and, HB1466 directs the commissioner of school and university lands 1o
negotiate with the Corps to introduce federal legislation to “return excess lands™ above clevalion
1854 around Lake Sakakawea and clevation 1617 around Lake Qahe. Both measures fail (o
grasp the complexities of this long drawn out issue and could undermine the state and counties
efforts to protect important interests implicated by transferring Corps lands.

Background

Both reservoirs (project areas) in North Dakota were built by first establishing the respective
high water mark, elevation 1617 for Oahe and 1854 for Sakakawen; flagging that elevation line
on the ground; and then the Corps went perpendicular to that elevation line buck 1o the next
rectangular grid line (section, township, range) and that spot often is the first section tine uphill
from the high water mark which became what is referred to as the “take line”, or where the
Corps purchased the property for the project aren. Locations where the “take line” was a good
distance back rom the high water mark because the next uphill section line was on the other end
of the section often became Wildlife Management Arcas (WMA’s) or campgrounds and boat
ramp arcas. Areas where the high water mark was close o the next uphill section line simply
beecame Corps lands.

When people talk about “cxcess™ fands or “lands not necessary”™ for project purposes {as the bill
and resolution do), in lay terms, they are talking about the areas between the high water mark
and the take line because those areas don’t flood. This view began in the late 1980°s with the
release of the Joint Tribal Advisory Commitiee (JTAC) report to Congress which has a



paragraph that states lands that haven’t or will not be flooded by the reservoirs should be
considered for return to the tribes. In 1989-00 that slatement lead Lo Congress inserting a
provision in the Equitable Compensation Act (ECA). P.L. 102-575, that directed the Corps to
transfer all lands above elevation 1860 within the exterior boundaries of the FL. Berthold Indian
Reservation back to the people the land was taken from, or to the tribe, and a similar provision
directed lands to be transferred within Standing Rock Indian Reservation.  (During the debaie
over the ECA the Corps transferred 3000 acres (o the Three Affiliated Tribes (TAT) and then
told Congress they have no more excess lands in North Dakota.)

Pursuant 1o the ECA the Corps held 4 series of meetings both on and off the reservations. For a
host of reasons, Governor Schafer opposed the transfers. One of the major issues was the cost of
property doing the transfer, The Corps estimated that finding heirs, title searches, cte. would
cost $23 million in 1993 dollars. (Now that the family trees of the heirs has had another
generation to spread out that cost from 1993 is very conservative, and legal Hghts between heirs
over who gets to the buy land with oil and gas under it is a lawyers dream law! } The practical
problems that developed with the ECA resulted in the Tand transfer provision being repealed by
Congress in 1994,

In 1995 the Corps held hearings in the upper basin states regarding “cxcessing” project lands
with wan eye toward redefining what “excess” meant. That resulted in the Corps issuing drafl
federal regulutions with a new definition of what was “excess,” Gov. Schafer opposed the draft
regulations because the Corps definition of “excess lands™ include WMAs, camipground and
park facilities and other areas where the state had invested a lot of money 10 support recreation.
The Coms withdrew the regulations.

Also in 1995 the TAT sued the Corps, ctaiming the ECA had vested the tribe with rights 1o the
lands subject the transfer and Congress could nol quash their vested rights. 1 2004 (he case was
dismissed and no appeal was filed. However, the TAT made a new request for the lands, this
time all lands with the reservation above elevation 1854, and cited as authority the Ft. Berthold
Mineral Restoration of 1984, (P.L. 98-102) The Corps, using that ¢levation line, estimated that
36.000 acres of project lands could be transferred to the BIA to be held in trust for the TAT.
Governor Hoeven and the counties around the Lake opposed the transfer. (See atlached) The
Corps then paired down the acreage to 24,000 acres by excluding areas such as the WMA’s and
developed recreation sites. Even at this reduced acreage Governor Hoeven, Attorney General
Stenehjem, and the counties publically indicated that a lawsuit would be filed if the Corps
atlempted 1o transfer the land.

The issue never ended, but sort of faded away, The tast [ recall, the Corps had drafted a MOU
belween themselves and BIA that once executed would transler the land to tribal trust status
controlled by BIA for the benefit of the TAT. The concern with HB1466 and SCR 4002 is that
they could be interpreted by the Corps as a change in state policy “green lighting™ them to
complete and execute the MOA with BIA wilhoul addressing the concerns the state and counties



have raised. Neither measure addresses any of the complexities and mterests involved, If the
slate and courities do have to sue the Corps over a land transfer HB1466 and SCR4002 wiil be
cited by the Justice Department in their bricfs as North Dakota’s support for the Corps’ action,
cven though the legislature did not have the Facis of the lransfer(s) in mind. Some of conlested
issues have been:

1) There are two systems universally used 1o transfer land in the United States: Rectangular
Grid (section, township, range), and metes and bounds for iiregular tracts. The Corps
can’t use rectangular grid because of the way the project lands were established. If, for
mstances, the Corps starts from the current take line and goes downhill o the next section
line they will be below the high water mark of the veservoirs and be transferring lands
that are needed for flooding in high water cycles. If the Corps uses metes and bounds the
surveying costs and costs 1o re-fence the new take line would be tens or hundreds of
millions of dollars for large land transfers such as the one that they contemplated on Ft.
Berthold. (over 700 linear miles of lake shore with all the ins and outs) Therefore, the
Corps’ position has been that they will not usc either established land description systen,
but instead not survey or mark the land on the ground, nor will they file the changes in
tand status with the county recorders. They will simply transfer the fand to BIA in their

records, and BIA would accept and recognize the lands in their records. The implications
of this are:

a. County land records are taken for granted to be an accurale depiction of what is on
the ground. Transferring unplatted land on an elevation line would change that and
county recorders could no longer assure title searchers that the land records are
accurate.

b. The ¢levation line within an Indian reservation becomes the civil/criminal
Jurisdiction tine, but on the ground no one will know wherc that line is, what type of
hunting license or permit is needed (tribal or state), or in some iimited cases, what
court system has jurisdiction,

¢. Pursuant to the Flood Control Act of 1944, the counties and school districts around
the reservoirs are annually paid PILT (Payment in Lieu of Taxes) for Comps land
acres. [If the land is transfeired 1o privaie ownership property taxes would kick in,
However, il the land is transferred 1o tribal trust land status there would be no PILT
payments, which are needed to support area roads.

d. Below the take lines all congressional section lines were vacated by federal cowrt
actions in the 1950°s. Therefore, currently, if a person can get to a take line by
seetion line they have access (0 project lands, even if by foot. Moving the take lines
down towards the high water mark without re-cstablishing the vacated section lines
has the poiential 10 create land-locks, where project lands are off-limits to public
access except by consent of the BIA ar private land owner. { The TAT has charged
the public a fee for crossing tribal trust lands to get to public tand, bur currently an



.'

agreement with the NDGF stopped those charges in licu of a payment from GF for
public access.)

e. There are currently 142 requests for water intakes around Lake Sakakawea, mostly
from oil interests. Under state law each congressional section line also carries the
automatic right to utility and other easements has scen {it by the county.
Transterring land with vacated scction lines means in order Lo access the water for
intakes means consent of not only the Corps at the water line (cwrrently at the take
line}, but BIA if they get the land, or the private land owner. An initiated measure
{very poorly worded) recently amended the state constitulion to prohibit eminent
domain to be used for things like water intakes uniess they serve a public purposs or
“common carrier,” which private oil company water depots do not under the
wording,.

. Mineral inlerests could be a mixed bag. Butl before the legislature starts taking
positions encouraging surface land transfers, the mineral interests of the public
should be accounted [or because it is possible that millions of dollars of o1l and gas
deposits that currently belong 1o the public would be given away, and in any bill
passed, the legislature should with specificity relinquish public mineral interests or
retain them. The Corps used three different purchasing criteria when they bought
the land and mineral interests were weated differently in cach criteria. In addition,
subsequenl acts such as the Fl. Berthold Reservation Mincral Restoralion Act,
changed the original mineral ownership interests on project lands within that
reservation. Therefore, T can’t say for certain what implication land transfers would
have on mineral interests, but the legistature should understand this and describe its
wishes regarding minerals before encovraging any surface land iranslers.

These and other complexitics should be addressed in any [egistation cncouraging tand transfers
because the lack of specifics could mean HB 1466 and SCR 4002 sole purpose will be 1o be used
against the state in court to support irresponsible federal actions. Additionally, this issuc is a

governorfeongressional delegation level issuc, not a state land consmissioner 1ssue as described
in HI31466.

SCR 4002 urges Congress to cstablish a “legal process™ to return land io riparian landowners.
The Congress has already done that once with the ECA, and that law had to be repealed because
it was so impractical and detrimental to the interests of North Dakota. {These lands were taken
00 years ago so how many of the original riparian landowners are stilt alive is a question.) The
Corps currently has authority to make projeet fands “surplus” to project purposes and available
for sale or transfer. (Within the boundary of an Indian rescrvation the tribe as the right of first
refusal to any “surplus” federal lands, even if it came [rom private landowners.)



Despite the Corps historical denial, recreation s a project purpose under the Flood Control Act,
which the upper basin states established in court. See South Dakoia v, Ubbelohde, 330 F.3d
1014 (8" Cir. 1993) When the Corps “excesses™ praject lands what they're doing is trying to
reduce their upper basin recreational legal responsibilities our state is owed under the FCA.
These are the types of issues the legislature should consider before granting the Corps a broad-

based “green light” to harm our state’s inlerests.

Thank you for your consideration of this matter.
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Hoeven adamant about stopping land transfer
LAUREN DONOVAN Bismarck Tribuue | Posted: Monday, June 26, 2006 7:00 pm

North Dakota's gevernor said the state would Tikely go 1o court o prevent the ULS. Army Corps of Bngincers [rom transflerring
24,000 acres of land it no longer needs around Lake Sukuakuwen w the Three Atfilated Tribes.

Giov, John Hoeven said the plan isn'l fair and could create o confusing map of go and no-go arcis arouwd the lake

Hocven made his cotunents Monday at the first in o week-long series of public hiearings the corps is halding on ils drafl plan te
transfer the land 10 be held i trest Tor the reservation,

The transfer would be the most signilicant change in the land's status since # was ncquired by the corps back in the '40s for
construction o £ Garrison Dam and the permanent Nood of Lake Sakakawe.

Hoeven said the transtir tsa't fair becuuse te majority of land taken inside the reservation boundaries was privaicly vwned, by
both tribal and non-tribal members, not by the wibal govemnment. He aiso said the lund, which is above 1,834 leet elevation and

no longer needed 1o operate the dam, is now open for public hunting and fishing and he objected o taking it out of the public
dotmain at the xame time the state is working to provide nore free hunting.

The governior said he's talked 1o the Attorney General abouf the stale's oplions to block the wansfer, ifit comes to that,

The corps will decide whether 1o go forward with the dratt plan in final form. The corps said it would not transFer another 12.600
acres inside the reservation houndary thal is leased for reereation sites and for wildlife management areas.

About 43 people attended the hearing, far fewer than when the plan was originally opened Lo public discussion a year ago. Tribal
chainmun Tex Hall made the format request in 2004, saying it was part of the tribe’s longstanding gquest 1o get back Tand it gave
up for the dam.

Puul Danks, whe heads up natucal resources for the tribes, said he was surprised by the governor's continued resistance, but said
be couldn't commment further.

Danks said the wibe's positon is that it i pleased thit the corps intends 1o transler 24,000 acres of grizing land and that it will
continue to request the 12,000 acres thal wers lelt off the wable.

"We think it's great, we're a little disappointed that we didn'l get the full 36,000, We will make a request [or the
remainder, " Danks said..

Todd Hall. a tribal member. said tribal people are also citizens of North Plakolz and that issues like secess could be worked vut.
He said he would "pray” that Hoeven changes Big position, singe a trunsfer would retnm (be land to focal controt,

Diale Frink, state water engineer, said (he wunsfer couid complicate water permits from Lake Sakakawea, by adding anvther level
of government 1o 1he process.

MclLean County State's Attorney Ladd Erickson has taken a lead lepal rule un the malter.
e said the enly way t fegally identify land in North Dakota 1s by the township grid system, or by meets and bounds.

Crickson said 1he land would hive to be surveyed and platted ar the time of tansler, rasher than described by a simple clevation
hne, so hat counties woull know precisely where rescrvation boundaries begin for taxation purposes.

Frigkson also said the transfer is being done under a 1984 Fort Bertheld Mlneral Restoration Act, whicl was intended 0 transser

hup/fwww bismarcktribune.comMmews/locai/article_c795cele-Naed-54d0-8338-5cce693ad...  1/25/201
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mineral ownership Lo the wibes, not land ownership.

Terry IMeck, who represented a statewide Lake Sakakawea friends' group, said # would be easier to agree 1o the trans{er i people
knew how the tribe planned 10 manage the land and had a plan for long-term developinent,

“When 24,000 acres of land changes hands and is managed differsmly. it changes lhe face of North Dakota and it changes it
forever," Fleck said.

The hearings continue today al 10 an. in Bickingon and at 5 p.m. in Hazen.

{Reach reporter Lauren Donovan ui 888-303-5511 or lauren@nwestriv.com.)

hup:/www bismarcktribune.com/mews/local/article_ e793¢ede-Ducd-3440-8338-5cce693ad...  1/25/2011
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Lake land transfer to be aired
LAUREN DONOVAN, Bismarck Tribune | Posted: Monday, February 28, 2005 6:40 pm

The public will get 1o comment on a proposed transler ol land on Lake Sakakawea o the Three Affiliated Tribes.

LOL aCld UUUU)’, CONTHTTH IO O Ui LS. :iilll}' AN |.3h [B]] i.‘.ll}_!.illUk}.'ll‘i AL LSS LI Iwh, Wilikad) LUl d 000 L 73R LA, adiu T
made thut assurunce to state leaders last week,

Bedey said he made an unsolicited commitment o Ciav. John Hocven's staff that he will hold public mectings un the issue, even

though i's not in the rules when a federal agency wansfers land o anather federal agency, in this case to the Burean ol Indian
AfTairs,

Bedey said he hasn't delermined when the pubiic meetings will be scheduled.

The tribes have asked the corps to use the Fort Bershold Mineral Restoration Act io transfer 36,000 scres of land on both sides off
the lake bordering the reservation,

1t says its request is part of an ongoing cfforl to restore reservaiion land taken in the 1940s and '50s for the Tooding of Gasrison
Dam,

The comps s swdying its authovity under the set and could make a decision this year,

Duane Houdek, atomey for the governar's oMice, said the state expressed general concerns about the wansfer 1o Bedey.
[Houdek said there are questions about public access, jurisdiction, private property, Game and Fish fand, and roads and bridges,
The land involved - 4 continuows sirip ol varying width an the reservation - does tnclude some places that the corps has under

lease 10 public entities.

VAN LY L pvivslaaic Lray IOV CHIIVM B8, With Yo, o S i mq,nun.’.nxL‘nm. AU B VLU 12 LU LSy dlt Ly [LENINVRNES]
mimagemenl. avea, leased 1o the State Game and Fish Department.

MeLean County Staie's Attorney Ladd Erickson is the only official 1o publicly calf on the corps 10 hold public heurings betore the
wansfer is nade,

Erickson said public access would be severety impacted, and the tribe would have no obtigation to honor leases once they expire
and the land becomes tribal trust lund.

(Reach reporter Lauren Donovan al 88R-303-3511, or lyurengidweslyiv.eom. )

http:/Awvww bismarcktribune.com/news/local/article_82c6b2a8-4699-5a7b-Ycca-db2187oba...  1/25/2011
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Giving tribal land back meets resistance
LAUREN DONOVAN, Bismarck Tribune { I'osted: Tuesday, May 24, 2003 7:00 po

Members of Fort Berthold Indian Reservation have waited S0 years o gel back Tand taken from them for (he permanent flooding
ol Luke Sakakiawea.

They may he within smenths of gelting ubout 25 pereent of that Jand back, bul from comments at a hearing an a proposed iransfer
Tuesday night in Bismarck, the idea (aces some siilf resistance,

The U.8. Army Corps of Engineers says it has authority to transfor land above L8354 {eel elevation within reservalion boundaries
that's no longer needed to maintain or aperate the dam. Tt proposes Lo transfer about 36,000 acres of the 156,000 acres originally

tuken when Garrison Dam was built in the 19505, The authority comes [rom o 1984 federal faw, the Fort Berthold Mineral
Resworation Acl.

The transter would be a several-step process und ticlude more hearings and a report an the effects of 1he anafer before any final
action, possibly later this year. -

Members of the Three Affiliated Tribos said the trunsfor helps right an old wrong, wreated when the reservation was forced to
give nearly 70 percent of all the land needed in North Dakota 1o hokd back the Missour River Trom flooding downstream,

John Danks, a reservation member, reminded the 200 or so at the hearing that the tribes were once given 12 million acres in

freaty, now reduced 1o 450,000 acres by one taking after another. About ane-third of the people who attended were tribal
members.

"Why dees the public want these Tew acres in the heart of our reservation?” Danks asked. "Why would they?"

The corps g leased some of that lind o stale and local public users over the veurs wind several slate officials stepped up 1w
provide that answer.

State Game and Fish Commissioner Dean Fildebrund suid he is diametricallvy opposed to the wansfer as proposed because of the
state's investinent in 7,000 wildlife management arcas around the take. The areas are managed for recreation and hunting.

Fe said the wildlife management areas would become tribal lands and non-tribal merabiers woudd have 1w buy tribal hunting
licenses to use them. He said the state and tribes should at least have the sane "sideboards™ of upening seasons and bay limils.

Gov. John Hoeven said the corps should not abandon its responsibility to provide recreation on Lake Sakakawea. which is
outlined in the corps’ nuasier manual for Missowri River operations.

Doug Prelal, director of the Stute Purks Department, said there are srate and federal covperative recreation projeets on the lake
that could be affected by the transfer.

"What does the future hold should this transfer proceed?” he asked.

The transfer would consist of varying widths ol land, rfimming the reservition on both sides of the Tuke. The lund is closest i the
wailcer, where boat rumps and public use accurs.

Prehal's question got o the heart of the matter.

David Johuson, a member of a cahin owner's association st McKenzie Bay, said people simply need more information about
what would happen if the tribe iukes over leases like the one MeKengie County and Watford City have with the corps lor v $2.5
million public and private recreation area therg,

hpfAwww bismarckuribune.comynews/ocalfarticie_d9017¢537-03a6-51e5-0017-424cubecb... 12572011
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Byron Holtan, owner of Indian Hills resort on the lake's north shore, raised 4 question of fhimess. Holtan snid he is a non-tribal
member. Hiving within the boundaries, whose fumily also had land taken for 1the dam. Now he's leasing seme of that fand back to
operate o resort and said it's in jeopardy of being inclwied i the transfer,

He said his grandfather had an old farm iruek in which e used 1o help reservalion members move oul of [heir homes ahead ol the
rising water,

"There were a lat of fears shed in that truck.” Holtan said. "Why shed tears again?”
Hohan said the land should be returned 1o reservation snd non-reservidion metnbers alike.

Russell Gillette is the son of George Giliette, who was tribal chairman when the federal nw was signed to Hood the reservation

members' ancestral home. In a photo that went around the world, George Gillette was overcome with emotion among stoie
bureaucrnts,

Russell Gillette said the Three Affiliated Tribes gre stilt veeling from the trauma caused by the dani,
"We all have 1o work together," he gaid, "We're all human."

The corps plans to make an agency-to-agency transfer to the Bureau of Indian Affairs, which will hold a1l of the transforeed fand
in trust. N

Paul Danks, tribes' natural resource managor, said the Three Affiliated 'Tribes stit) has to clarily whether il would take over Lhe
corps' leases For wildlile menagement areas and public recreation areas ar whether those wonld be managed by the BIA
Tribal ciairman Tex Hall sent a statement 1o the hearing, He said the tide has questions about the wansfer. too.

"The tribes recognize and understand that many of you sre fearful of the proposed trimsfer," Hall said, 7. understand that the

tribes do not have anv desire W obstruct your interests as we recounize tut 1018 in the tribes’ best inrerest to promote econanic
activity on and around Lake Sakakawea ™

The corps wili hold a bearing at 4 p.m. today al the Dickinson Days Inn and at 4 p.m. Thursday at the Williston Airport
international Toa. Pablic comment will be taken from 6 po, fo 8 pan,

(Reach reporter Lauren Donovan at 888-303-551 L or lawreng@wesiriv.com,)

hitpr//www bismarckiribune.comimews/locaifarticle d90}7¢57-63a6-51¢5-0017-424cabech...  1/25/201)
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TESTIMONY BY

Michael Brand, Director
Surface Management Division

North Dakota State Land Department
HOUSE BILL NO. 1466

House Energy and Natural Resources Committee
January 27, 2011

House Bill 1466 as written directs the Commissioner of University and School Lands to negotiate
with the United States Army Corps of Engineers to return excess lands around Lake Sakakawea
and Lake Oahe to the Board of University and School Lands, and ultimately to private landowners.

A similar land transfer occurred in South Dakota in 2007 from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to

authorize returning the land to private ownership. The following information was obtained from the
South Dakota Game, Fish and Parks Department.

. the State of South Dakota. South Dakota retained the land and the federal legislation, did not

1.

73,319 acres of land around Lake Oahe, Lake Francis Case, and Lake Lewis and Clark in
South Dakota were returned to the State of South Dakota to be managed for recreation
and wildlife. The process began in 1999 and was completed in 2007 (i.e. 7 year process).
For the South Dakota land transfer, a trust fund of $108 miliion is held by the U.S. Treasury
for South Dakota to manage the former Army Corps land. $4.5 - $6.5 million is paid to
South Dakota gach year from the trust fund.

Four Indian Tribes were involved in the negotiations in South Dakota. Standing Rock and
Crow Creek had the land adjacent to their reservation left with the Army Corps for
management. The Cheyenne River and Lower Brule had the land transferred to the
Bureau of Indian Affairs to be held in trust.

Weeds were not a major problem because the weeds are mostly below the “exclusive flood
pool” where the water fluctuates with the operation of the reservoir.

In North Dakota, the following points should be considered for HB#1466.

1.

. 3‘
4.

The Office of the Commissioner of University and School Lands is a special fund agency.
Therefore, implementing HB#1466 would require a general fund appropriation (i.e. special
funds managed by the Land Board could not be used). -

For the 2011/13 biennium expenses would be minimal ($80,000) but for the 2013/15
biennium expenditures could easily exceed $1.8 million.

There are approximately 77,909 acres around Lake Sakakawea and 22,600 acres around
Lake Oahe in North Dakota.

If this land was broken into sale tracts, sale costs would probably greatly exceed
management costs. The two most significant sale costs would be surveys and appraisals.
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The State Game and Fish Department, and the ND Parks and Recreation Department both
have facilities on these two reservoirs. County park districts may also be involved. It
would be appropriate to provide for the direct transfer of lands to these entities where their
facilities are located.

Taxes would be about $535,254 for the 2013-2015 biennium.

Weed control is estimated at $165,840 for the 2013-2015 biennium.

There is a transposition of numbers on the fiscal note. The 2013-2015 Appropriation
should be $1,832,636.

In South Dakota the entire land transfer process took 7 years and private landowners were not
involved. In North Dakota the process from beginning to end could take longer considering the
involvement of the tribes, other state agencies, private landowners and the general public.



HB 1466 — Testimony to the Senate Natural Resources Committee

Good morning, Chairman Lyson, and Senate Natural Resources Committee
members. For the record, my name is Julie Ellingson and I represent the North

- Dakota Stockmen’s Association.

The Stockmen'’s Association stands in support of HB 1466, which would allow

the state to accept returned lands from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.

During this and last session and the interim in between, many very poignant
examples of problems related to the unnecessary taking of land, as well as
inadequate weed control and unreasonable grazing requirements negatively
impacting landowners on these parcels, have been brought to light, and I know

you will be hearing more personal accounts today.

We appreciate your efforts to help spur the discussion about returning the land
that is not necessary for flood control, just as was done in the State of South
Dakota. This bill will help facilitate the process, and we urge your do-pass

recommendation on it as well.
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TESTIMONY ON HB 1466
SENATE NATURAL RESOURCES COMMITTEE
MARCH 17, 2011
Tex “Red Tipped Arrow” Hall, Chairman,
Mandan Hidatsa & Arikara Nation
Fort Berthold Indian Reservation

Chairman Lyson & Members of the Natural Resources Committee, my name
is Tex Hall, or Ihbudah Hishi, which means “Red Tipped Arrow”. I am honored to
present this testimony as the Chairman on behalf of the Mandan Hidatsa & Arikara
Nation. In its current form, HB 1466 authorizes the Board of University and
School Lands to accept excess lands from the Corps of Engineers around lake
Sakakawea and Lake Oahe on behalf of the State of North Dakota. The bill makes
no exception for lands taken from the Mandan Hidatsa and Arikara Nation or the
Standing Rock Stoux Nation. 1 oppose this bill without a clarifying amendment
that ensures that it does not apply to lands within the Fort Berthold and Standing
Rock Reservations, because these lands belong, by Treaties, to the people for

whose benefit those reservations were set aside.

The Mandan Hidatsa and Arikara have, for centuries, lived and thrived along
the Missouri River, which we have long called “grandfather”. The river has always
been our lifeblood. History documents that the Missouri River and the history of
our peoples are inseparable. Our lodges were built along its Bluffs, our crops grew,
and our animals grazed and had shelter along the river bottom. We built our culture
around the river, it was our heartland. Even during the Great Depression our people

did well along the River. This all changed when the Corps of Engineers came with



the Flood Control Act. The Missouri River is now controlled by a series of
dams. One of our former Chairmen, the late Carl Whitman, noted that these dams
were conveniently placed to have maximum effect on the Indian tribes whose
reservations and homelands lie directly upriver from the dams, placed that way
primarily because it was easier to condemn Tribal lands than other lands along the

river. This is a documented fact.

No one can dispute that the effects of these dams have been devastating to
our people, our culture, and our way of life. Our Nation is only now beginning to
emerge from the long shadow of devastation inflicted by the “great flood” as our
elders have called the creation of Lake Sakakawea behind the dam. This flood took
away 156,000 acres of our heartland. This was fertile bottom land that supported
our people and our animals for centuries. The reservoir called Lake Sakakawea
stretches from one end of our reservation to the other. The reservoir also means
that we have lost immediate access to the river, as the Corps owns the land

adjacent to it, part of what is called the “taken area”.

The Mandan Hidatsa and Arikara was the only Tribal Nation to be split in
two parts by the dam. In fact, to get from one part of our Reservation to another,

we must travel outside the boundaries of our reservation. What used to be a close



. knit community is now split into widely separated towns, with some communities,

once a few miles part, separated by 120 miles because of Lake Sakakawea.

I have attached an é.rticle entitled “Defending Their Lands” written by

Robert J .l Hanna for “The Past Times”, the official publication of the Fort Lincoln
Foundation. I ask that it be made a part of the record along with my testimony. I

want to quote the beginning of this insightful article because it goes to the heart of

the injustice that surrounds the taking of our homeland, and our continuing effort

to regain the land that was unjustly taken from our people. Remember, it was

during World War II when the groundwork was being laid for the Garrison dam.

. The Article quotes what one of our Councilmen said back then:

“The principles that we fought for in this last war, right beside you, was for the

very homes, lands, and resources that you are trying to take from us today.”

—Mandan, Hidatsa and Arikara Nation Councilman Mark Mahto, Washington,
D.C., July 17, 1947.

The Past Times Article goes on to state:

“It was a bitter irony. During World War Il, while 250 Mandan, Hidatsa and
Arikara Indians— half the adult men from their reservation—were away fighting to
protect their country and homes, their country was making plans to destroy their
homes instead. In 1944, Congress approved a plan to build a dam that would flood
the core of the Fort Berthold Reservation and the homes of 90 percent of the
reservation’s people.”

The Garrison dam displaced 90 percent of our people and flooded all of our

‘ towns, including our hospital which has never been replaced. The Fort Berthold

3



“Indian Reservation was set aside by federal law for the benefit of the Mandan
Hidatsa and Arikara people. If the excess Reservation lands along the lake belong
to anyone, they belong to us. Federal law authorizes the return of these excess
lands to the Mandan Hidatsa and Arikara Nation. Section 206 of the Fort Berthold
Reservation Mineral Restoration Act grants the Secretary of the Army the power to
enter into agreements with the Secretary of the Interior to restore these excess
lands in trust for the Mandan Hidatsa and Arikara Nation. This federal law will
help to remedy a historical injustice.

I ask that the state of North Dakota respect the sacrifice our people made in
the taking of our heartland, and our efforts to regain what was wrongfully taken
from us. We will stand with you in your effort to regain the excess lands in North
Dakota that were taken from non-native people. But we will continue to fight any
effort by the state to acquire the land that was taken unjustly from the Mandan
Hidatsa and Arikara people. Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, I urge
you to clarify that this bill does not apply to the excess lands taken from the

Mandan Hidatsa and Arikara, as well as the Lakota of Standing Rock.
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Defending Their Lands

The Struggle of Three Tribes to Save
Their Reservation in the 1940s

By Robert ]. Hanna

tlT L

he principles that we
fought for in this last war, right
beside you, was for the very
homes, lands, and resources that
you are trying to take from us
today.”

~Mandan, Hidatsa and Arikara
Nation Councilman Mark Mahto,

ushington, D.C., July 17, 1847,

It was a bitter irony. During

World War II, while 250 Mahdan,
Hidatsa and Arkara Indians-—
half the adult men from their
reservation—were away fighting
to protect their country and homes,
their country was making plans
to destroy their homes instead,
In 1944, Congress approved a
plan to build a dam that would
flood the core of the Fort Berthold
Reservation and the homes of 90
percent of the reservation’s people.

These three tribes had lived
along the Missouri River for
hundreds of years. They built
their culture around the river,

‘they depended'

locating  their
earthlodge
villages
on bluffs '
overlooking 1B
its banks and ¥
farming  the:
river bottoms.
Every spring

upon the
Big  Muddy
to flood its

banks, laying:
sediments as
fertile soil and
watering  the
ground, The

e

Photograph Courtesy of the Assodated Press
Fort Berthold Tribal Council Chairman George Gillette tweeps as

floodplains J.A. Krug signs the contrac! to purchase reservation lands for the

were

divideg construction of Garrison Dant.

into vast

stretches of fenced fields where
the weomen raised enough comn,
beans, squash, and sunflowers to
feed their families-and trade with
other tibes. Tens of thc;usands of
people thrived- here uritil the late
1700s. Then, beginning in 1781,

began that killed all but a few
hundred people within a century.
Still, the tribes persevered. In 1862,
they banded together to form
what is now called the Mandan,

Hidatsa and Arikara Nation,
At that time, their reservation
history was beginning. The
Continued on Page ¢

a series of smallpox epidemics




Continued from Page 1

".government.and the tribes signed

the Fort Laramie Treaty of 1851,in’

which the goverrinient agreed to

recognize much of the traditional-

lands of the tribes as belonging
to them—an area.of 12,6 million
acres. But, over the years a process
began in which more and more
reservation. ‘lands -wete
away and the very:concept.of the
reservation” itself was degraded
In 1870, the reservation was
arbitrarily reduced by executive
order. It was reduced again in
1880, down to 1.2 million acres,
to allow the government to give
free Jand to'the Northefn Pacific
Railroad, whu:h 1! was to ‘;ell to

tribes would no-longer-hald the
reservation in comma; but rather

each head of househo]d would:be

assigned a-160-acre plot from the
reservation, Ainy reservation Tands
left over—indeed-the majority-of
the reservation—could be sold
to the govemment. The tribes
were  essentially  strong-armed
into doing so several times unlil
1910. By then, the reservation
was one. twelfth its original size,
with even less of its land under
the ownership of Three Tribes
members.

But, if any comfort was left
to them it was that they still'had
the river. bottomlands. Their
towns.of Elbowoods, Nishu, Red
Butte, Charging 'Eagle, Lucky
Mound;, Independence,
Creek, Beaver:Creek and Square

Butte .punctuated long stretches.

of farmlind and . beautiful
cottonwood  forests. The soil
theré was among-the most fertile
.on the Great Plains. The: tribes
carried on their thousand-year
tradition of farming in the river
valley, adding wheat to their
more traditional crops. Many
also invested in cattle and made
ranching the reservation’s second
main industry. They did so well
-that during the depression of the
1930s, even though they also faced
poverty, their economy survived
better than that of surrounding
hite-areas —many impoverished
white people survived the
depression by petting jobs on
Three Tribes farms and ranches.
Even during the Second World
War, while so many of the men
were away, the farms managed to

-thmbs ‘were' riot going

taken -
-Missouri  had  always?

settlers: Then, in 1867, the Genefal-* V25 started lapping
A]lotmenlALt deterrjr;med that the

: Colonel

Shell

THE pAST TIMES
The Rlver,

Beflammed

.

increase producnon
But; far downstream,

well. The -year 1943
saw one of-the ]argesl
floods recorded alnng
the Missouri, cliiming :§ ™
several lives and: |
destroying milltions of |
dollars of pmperty The ; !
been “an unpredlctablef
river, prone to flood ]

one year and drop so - |.
low another that it was ®
unnavigable. The nation
was persuaded to do’
anything necessary. to..}.*
stop it, and ‘when the' .-

into. the streéts below |

La[\e Sakal\aum :

=S
' bt s e, R T . 281

the' ‘Omaha - office - of 1 ©R
"Lewis”

Adaptcd from a map in Meyers, copyright 1977,
Pick's The canstruction uf Garrison Dan flooded several Forl Berthold contfinunities and resulted in the

Df ‘the Army Corps of rrenhcm of five new togens, all meay from e iewly-flooded river bottoms.,

Engineers, .no-one .was,

more. .persuaded: lhan _he.”Sent
away to Omaha after’ bunghng
the design of an Army Air Corps
training facility (it-had to be shut
down after it was determined that
the runway was impossible to
land on), Pick now found himself
called upon o design a flood-
control plan for the entire Missouri
basin. Developed in just 90 days
and only 10 pages long, the Pick
Plan called for almost the entire
length of the upper MlSSOul’l River
to be converted to a: SLI‘]CS‘ of five
artificial lakes, with the intended

restilt of not only controlling,
ensuring.
“enough  water for sperraitenit

flooding, - but also -
navigation on'the lower* Missouri,
The plan'natiirally won:the favor
of downistream states.

Meanwhile, Glenri: Sloan of
the Burcau of Reclamanon office
in Billings, Mont, “hiad been
working for the last three years on
another proposal for controlling
the Missouri, The Sloan Plan

did not provide for downstream

navigation, but it did provide
for irrigation of otherwise arid
farmland  upstrcam. and, of
course, the control of flooding, It
involved three fewer dams on the
main stem of the Missouri and
more small ones on itg tributaries.
Naturally, it was favored by the
upstream states,

The two competing plans
led to long and loud debates
between Pick and Sloan, between
the Army Corps and the Bureau

of Reclamation, belween the
downstream and the upstream
states, - and, between their
corresponding congressmen.
Finally, President Franklin D.
Roosevelt ordered the corps
and -the buréau to .design a
compromise  plan.  Quickly
realizing that neither side would
give ground, they decided in
a one-day meeting to simply
combine all the proposed dams
and projects of each side without
even considering whether there
would be enocugh water in the
Missouri Basin for the combined
goals of both agencies. The
resulting Pick-Sloan. Plan was
approved by Congress as part of
the Flood Control Act of 1944,
Neither side gave much
consideration-to Fort-Bérthold or
the many other reservations that
would be affected by” the dams,
Taking land for a public works
project from Indian reservations
was very different from using
eminent domain laws to take it
from private citizens. Reservation
land was protected by treaties
in which the government had
promised to recognize the lands
of the Three Tribes as theirs
forever, According to the legal
situation in force by that time,
much of the land to be flooded
was held in trust by the United
States Government for the tribes.
But four of the five artificial lakes
to be created from the Missouri
would fall on reservations, and
the Three Affiliated Tribes wouid

be hit hardest. Ninety percent of
the people lived on land that was
to be flooded by the Garrison
Dam, not to mention every one
of their towns. The July 1, 1943,
issue of the Sanish Sentine! quoted
a memo from Department of the
Intertor Solicitor Felix S. Cohen
to Indian Commissioner William
Brophy as saying, “the Garrison
site was selected by reason of
the fact that a large proportion
of the inundated area would be
composed of Indian lands.”

The Three Tribes'  first
indication that their hemetand
was -in danger was in the spring
of 1943 when engineers and small
red surveyors’ flags were noticed
around Garrison and Elbowoods.
The Stanley Sun was the first to
break the news to the tribes that
the governmeni was planning
a dam. The Sun reported that
the engineers were trying to
determine where exactly it would
be built,

Once the Pick-Sloan  plan
was approved, the Army Corps
unleashed major advertising
efforts to promole the dams in
MissouriBasinstates. Newspapers
in North Dakota reported that
the Garrison Dam, the first of the
new dams, would be a wonder of
the modern age, providing flood
control, irrigation, recreation,
cheap electricity and, eventually,
an industrial paradise for the
state, not to mention a crystal-
clear sparkling blue lake in place
of the muddy Missouri. A text



was -even wntten for the state’s
public schools so that school
children " could. be -informed in
class -about the bénefiti of the
dam, presented as a. monumental
-work of human technology and
ingenuity.

The Three Tribes. tried to
defend their homes, land, cities
-and economic base. As early as
November, 1943, the tribal council
passed a resolution opposing
construction of the dam because of
the “untold material and econornic
damage” it would cause to the
Threé Affiliated Tribes. Members
of the tiibal-council traveled back
and forth to Washington many
- times in the following years to

. pleadtheir case. They did not have
travel-money or even professional
suits to wear, so dances and other
tundraisers were held throughout
the reservation to pay for their
tickets and. hotel bills, while gther
members sought out dsed suits
of clothing for them in church
donation barrels. The tribes-hired
a civil engineer named Daniel C.
Walser to propose an allernative
dam site. He developed a design
for a dam in the northwuestern
part of the reservation, which
would have left the majority of the
reservation bottomlands intact.
According to® Walser, it would
have achieved the same flood-
control and ‘irrigation results as
the Carrison Dam,. generated
electricity even more efficiently,
cost $1 million less to build, and
saved perhaps $20 million in

relocation costs, The Three Tribes

even -offered to_give this land to

the:government_for free, but the,

Army Corps would not consider it.

. Many have blamed longstanding

: rivalry between the corps and civil

engineers,

Having approved the Pick-

Sloan plan in 1944, Congress

finally authorized funding for it in

1946 under the stipulation that the

tribes be offered land of sufficient

size and comparable quality to

replace the lands to be destroyed

‘by the dam. 1t looked as if the mbst:

likely area would be the land just

" south of the dam, in the Washbiirn

arca. However, an oulcry from the

loenl non-Indian residents quickly
dampened the idea.

In May of 1946, Colonel Pick,
North Dakota Governor Fred
Aandahl and other officials
involved with the dam met
with Three Tribes members in
Elbowoods.. The corps hoped
to persuade the Three Tribes to

Vaccep't replécemer.lt"land, outside

of the current reservation, -but
the tribes hoped to persuade the
corps,to consider ‘their'other dam
location. One Three Tribes. man
expressed empathy for the white
settlers who would have to be
removed to give the Three Tribes
additional river bottom land.
“The residents of the lieu.area are
pioneers of the country,'and T do
not think it right to compel them to
leave their home.” The consensus
of the tribes was that they could
not duplicate their former lifestyle
in other riverside areas. Both the
tribes -and. the Burcau of Indian
Affairs ultimately re]ected the
offer.

_Finally, in 1947, the tribes were
offered 5,105 625 a!_ong with

irrigation and free clectrical power -

as a take-it-or-leave-it- settiement
for the: lands to be mundaled
Tribal Council Chairman George

Gillette, htem]ly in tears, signed’

the agreement on May 21, 1948,
The Sanish Sentinal quoted him as
saying that day, “The truth is, as
everyone knows our Treaty of Fort
Laramie, made in 1851 and our
tribal constitutions are being tom
into shreds by this contract.”
Once wark began on the dam,
it was every bit the amazing
spectacle of human might and
technology the Army Corps
literaturehad promised. An entire
planned .town, named Rwerda]e
with its own church, schoo! stores
and. recreation centers was: bmlt
next to the site to house all the
workers, A bridge was built-over
the river ffom which dump trucks
poured stone and earthvto form the
dam while: earthmovers worked
the sides of the site. Massive
turbines were constructed ‘for the
clectrical generators. Meanwhile,
Three Tribes members  were
haphazardly relocated from their
precious river bottom to lands
on the desolate high plains.
Frequently, entire houses were
moved on trailers, leaving behind
ghost tawns of gaping basements.
‘Other Three Tribes members were
_given.new housmg with woefully
Ainadequate msnlatmr\ that no
North, ‘Dakota " resideént would
voluntarily chose agninst the harsh
winters. Tribal membérs were not
permitted to salvage the wood of
the cottonwood trees. On the high
plains they would no longer have
access to their usual wood and
coal veins as sources of fuel and
heat. Government representatives
told them that they would receive

- WWW.FORTLINCOLN.COM

sufficient eledtricity from the dam
generalors as a replacement, but
the promise was never followed
through.

Finally, in 1954, the dam
was. finished. President Dwight
D. Eisenhower himself came
to  oversee the dam-closing
celebration. After he left and the
festivities died down, the Mandan,
Hidatsa and Arikara watched
the water slowly back up against
the earth-tilled wall and swallow
up a little more of their doomed
homeland every day for the next
two years.

In addition to never receiving
the power benefits, the promise
of irrigation for the people’s

new lands never materialized.

Furthermore, the swollen Missouri
now divided the reservation into
five distinct sections that could
not be accessed except by driving
many dozens of miles outside the
reservation to the ncarest bridges.
The combined force of all these
factors threw the once-growing
Three Tribes economy on its side
for decades. Despite repeated
attemnpts at justice, none got very
far. With their economic base
destroyed and no help establishing
a new one, the tribes struggled on
for over 30 years.

In 1986, a Joint Tribal Advisory
Committee was tormed under
orders from the Secretary of
the: Department of the Interior
to examine the effects of the
Garrison Dam on the..people of
the Fort Berthold Reservation, as
well as the effects of other Pick-
Sloan dams on the people-of the
Standing Rock Reservation. In
a carefully-rescarched, 90-page
document, the committee reported
that the Three Affiliated Tribes
had bome most of the expense
of a dam of which they had not
voluntarily accepied construction,
and brought them no bencfits
whaisoever, Even though written
in  straight-forward, objective
legai terminology, the document
is deeply moving as one rcads

the long list of-injustices done to

the tribes. The committee pointed
out that justly compensating the
Three Tribes for the taking of
their lands required .much maore
than reimbursing them for the fair
market value of their farmland.
The river bottomland was also
the essential raw material of their
economy-—an gconomy that could
not be replicated on the dry high
plains, Adequate compensation
should consider what it would

take for the people to form some
completely new kind of economic
base, Furthermore, the document
pointed out how the dividing
of the reservation had lead to
serious  difficulties in reaching
emergency medical care, how
the taking of the trees and coal
veins had eliminated the tribes’
energy sources in ways that the
failed promise of electricity had
never restored, while shabbily-
insulated  government-provided
houses often forced families at the
time to pay clectrical bills of $400
or $500 per month in the winter.
Because the land was taken in
square chunks, a considerable
amount of excess land around
the reservoir had been tuken that
was not needed for the running
of the dam. Health care facilities,
an important bridge, schools,
highways and access reads had
been removed that were never
replaced, despite Army Corps
promises, Furthermore, the tribes
were not allowed to develop
picnic  shelters, marinas  and
other recreational facilities along
the lakeshore that might help
their  economy.  Altogether, the
document listed 10 changes that
Congress should make to improve
the fairness of the land-tuking of
1948,

Once the report was sent to
Secretary of the Interior Donaid
P. Hodel, however, he allowed it
to sit on his desk for over a year.
1t appeared that the document
would beignored indefinitely until
President Ronald Reagan, duringa
meeting with then-tribal chairman
Ed Lone Fight and several other
Native American leaders, heard
about the situation and personally
requested Secretary Hodel to look
into the document right away. This
began a long legislative process,
lasting untit late 1992, in which
Congress agreed to pay the tribes
$149.2 million dollars 10 heip
them recover from the darmages
caused by the dam. Money from
the electricity generated by the
Garrison Dam was to be placed
into a trust fund and the interest
from the fund to be sent to the
tribal government at reguiar
intervals.

This amount was less than half
the minimum suggested by the
Joint Tribal Advisory Committce,

Of course, no amount of money
or improvements will ever bring
back the memories, the beauty or
the thousand-year ties lost to the
flood.
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RE:  Written testimony for Natural Resources Committee Hearing on HB 1466

‘ Dear Senator Lyson:

Aftached is my written testimony on HB 1466, a bill to provide authority to the
state Board of University and School Lands to receive title to U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers land along the Missouri River. [ respectfully request that my statement be
included in the record of the Natural Resources Committee hearing on HB 1466, and be
taken into consideration in the committee’s deliberations on this bill.

. Thank you very much for your consideration.

Sincerely,

Charles W. Murphy
Tribal Chairman

‘ Attachment
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Natural Resources Committee, my name 1s
Charles W. Murphy. | serve as Chairman of the Standing Rock Sioux Tribe. [ ask that
this written statement be entered into the committee’s record of the hearing on HB 1466,
a bill to authorize the state Board of University and Schoo! Lands to receive title to U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers land along the Missouri River.

Let me begin by recognizing the severe impacts that the Army Corps of Engineers
has had on North Dakota, and the desire of the affected landowners to receive lands taken
by the Corps. Our Tribe lost 56,000 acres of our Reservation’s most fertile and wooded
lands, for the site of Lake Oahe. 1 have been working for the restoration of nearly 20,000
acres of excess taken land, for 25 years. I fully understand the impetus behind HB 1466.

However, ] have serious concerns with this bill. My concerns focus on two areas:
(1) the state of North Dakota’s cfforts to obstruct comparable land transfers for the
Standing Rock Sioux and Three Affiliated Tribes of Fort Berthold; and (2) the potential
impacts on cultural resources along the Missouri River, on land that may be transferred
out of federal status. These concerns lead me to request that this committee withhold
action on HB 1466, pending further discussion between the state and the Tribes on this
matter,

1 address these concerns in more detail, below.



1. North Dakota’s Efforts to Obstruct Tribal Land Transfers

As stated above, as Tribal Chairman, [ have been working on the restoration of
excess taken lands, for 25 years. Of the 56,000 acres of land taken from our Tribe,
approximately 19,000 acres lay above 1620 msl, Lake Oahe’s maximum operating pool.
The land is generally undeveloped and fallow. There are some leases for cutling hay, and
the Tribe maintains some food plots for wildlife. There is hunting and fishing on this
land, aithough there are fewer boat docks and facilities than at other places along the
Missouri River. One of the best boating sites has been developed by our Tribe at the
Prairie Knights Marina, at Walker Bottom.

Unlike lands acquired off-Reservation, the lands taken from our Tribe by the
federal government for the Missouri River Basin Pick-Sloan program were Treaty-
protected land. They were guaranteed to our Tribe to be held in trust by the United States
in perpetuity, in the Treaty of Fort Laramie of April 29, 1868 (15 Stat. 635).
Accordingly, when the Army acquired the land in 1958, the federal government
commitied to return any land that was taken in excess of project needs.

In 1985, the Secretary of the Interior appointed an authoritative commission to
study Pick-Sloan’s impacts on the Standing Rock Sioux and Three Aftiliated Tribes. The
establishment of this commission was related to passage of the Garrison Reformulation
Act of 1986. (100 Stat. 418). Prominent North Dakotans, such as General C. Emerson
Murray, were appointed to the Joint Tribal Advisory Committee (JTAC).

The JTAC Committee issued its Final Report on May 23, 1986. The report stated
in part, “The former Indian lands comprising the present excess lands should be restored
to the (Standing Rock and Three Affiliated) tribes subject (o easements for project
purposes.” (Final Report of the Garrison Unit Joint Tribal Advisory Committee, May 23,
1986).

Nearly seven years later, the Congress established a process for the transfer of
these lands to the Tribe and former Indian allottees, in the Three Affiliated Tribes and
Standing Rock Sioux Tribe Equitable Compensation Act of 1992. (106 Stat. 4734).

However, this provision was repealed in the Emergency Supplemental Appropriations



Act of February 12, 1992 (108 Stat. 41), due to the inability of the Army Corps of
Engincers and Bureau of Indian Affairs to carry out the land transfer in a timely manner,
and issues over river access at Fort Berthold. Nearly 40 years after the land was taken,
our Tribe was back at square one.

The legislation repealing the land transfer stated in part, “the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers should proceed with the Secretary of the Interior to designate excess lands and
transfer them pursuant to Public Law 99-599."  Accordingly, the Tribes have been
attempting to work with the Corps for a land transfer.

Unfortunately, the state of North Dakota has generally opposed the efforts of the
Tribes. For example, on March 4, 2008, then-Governor Hoeven signed a letter to the
Departments of the Interior and the Army, referencing, “serious opposition,” to an
administrative land transfer at Fort Berthold. The state has been holding up these
longstanding issues of justice for our Tribes.

Now, we learn that the North Dakota Lands Commissioner has a plan to acquire
over 100,000 acres of Corps land (see the Fiscal Note to HB 1466), and is seeking the
authority from the legislature to implement it. There is a definite inconsistency. Until

that inconsistency is resolved, HB 1466 should not be enacted.

2. The Proposed Land Transfer Under HB 1466 Could Eliminate
Federal Protections for Cultural Resources Along the Missouri River

Our Tribe wintered in the bottomtands of the Missouri River for hundreds of
years before non-Indian settlement. Consequently, this area contained a wealth of
artifacts and cultural resources of our Tribe, and the Three Affiliated Tribes. The Corps
of Engineers has identified 1,114 cultural sites at Lake Oahe, and 1,402 cultural sites at
Lake Sakakwea. (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Final Environmental Impact Statement,
Missouri River Master Water Control Manual, Review and Update, March 2003, p. 3-
165). These figures are clearly too low — there are probably thousands more of these
sites. Their protection is very important to our Tribe.

The act of Congress which authorized the acquisition of land from the Standing

Rock Sioux Tribe for the site of Lake Oahe, required the Corps of Engineers to relocate



the cemeteries that were in the bottomlands. (72 Stat, 1762). The Corps failed to do so,
however. As a result, water level fluctuations at the Missouri River main stem reservoirs
result in the unearthing of human remains, funerary objects and cultural resources,
traceable to Standing Rock and our neighboring Tribes.

Federal law protects these objects from looting and other activities, as long as
they are located on federal land. The National Historic Preservation Act requires federal
agencies to evaluate the impacts of their operations on such sites, 1o consult with the
Historic Preservation Officer when such impacts occur, and to mitigate harm. (16 U.S.C.
§470f). The Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act (NAGPRA)
prohibits the intentional unearthing of Native grave sites and cultural objects on federal
lands, and prescribes mitigation requirements for the unintentional unearthing of such
objects. (25 U.S.C. §3002).

Excess Corps lands transferred to the Tribes retain their federal character, and
these protections would remain in place. Excess Corps lands transferred to the state — or,
as the state Lands Commissioner has proposed, to former non-Indian landowners — would
lose these protections for Native American cultural resources. That is cxtremely
troubling to me.

This issue clearly requires more deliberation.  Until these issues are resolved,

however, HB 1466 should not be enacted.
3. Conclusion

In sum, I fully understand the desire for all local stakeholders to obtain redress for
the surplus taken lands by the Corps of Engineers. Our Tribe has been working on this
for many years. The state of North Dakota has not been supportive of our efforts,
however It is clearly inconsistent for the state to oppose the Tribes on the return of
excess taken land, and then to enact legislation authorizing non-Indian land transfers.
This inconsistency should be resolved, prior to enactment of HB 1466.

Moreover, the land that would be subject to transfer pursuant to this bill contains
valuable cuitural resources of Native American origin. The protection of these valuable

resources will be jeopardized, if the land transfer contemplated under HB 1466 were to



take place. This issue must also be resolved, in order for the state to acquire any surplus
Corps lands.

I stand prepared to work constructively with Governor Dalrymple, the Board of
Universtty and School Lands, and all affected stakeholders in North Dakota, to resolve
these concerns in a mutually agreeable manner. Until that occurs, however, this
committee should not refer HB 1466 to the Senate for passage.

Thank you very much for taking my testimony into consideration. Pila miya.



